Public Document Pack

olsover

District Council
-

Scan this QR gode ; The ArC
e High Street
S43 4JY

To: Chair & Members of the Climate Contact: Tom Scott
Change and Communities Scrutiny Telephone: 01246 217045
Committee Email: tom.scott@bolsover.gov.uk

Monday 14™ February 2022

Dear Councillor

CLIMATE CHANGE AND COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of the Climate Change and
Communities Scrutiny Committee of Bolsover District Council to be held at the
Council Chamber, The Arc, Clowne on Tuesday, 22nd February, 2022 at 10:00
hours.

Risk Assessment Disclaimer

When attending this meeting in person, | confirm that | have read and understood the
contents of each of the following risk assessments and agree to act in line with its
content.

e Covid-19 ARC RTW RA001

e Working in Offices At The Arc During Covid-19 Pandemic Guidance — ARC —
SSW001

e Meetings — EM001 - Committee and Council Meetings during the Covid-19
pandemic

These documents have been emailed to Members and are available on the
Modern.Gov App library.

- We speak your language
@ISOVeI' Polish Mowimy Twoim jezykiem
Slovak Rozpravame Vasim jazykom

Chinese TS IRIRAVIES

If you require this agenda in large print

or another format please call us on 01246 217753

If you require an adjustment to enable you to participate in or access the meeting
please contact the Governance Team at least 72 hours before the meeting starts.

B disability o
B confident Tel 01246 242424 Email enquiries@bolsover.gov.uk Web www.bolsover.gov.uk

EMPLOYER



Reqister of Members' Interests - Members are reminded that a Member must within
28 days of becoming aware of any changes to their Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
provide written notification to the Authority's Monitoring Officer.

You will find the contents of the agenda itemised onwards.

Yours faithfully

. S futdod

Interim Monitoring Officer



Item No.

CLIMATE CHANGE AND COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

AGENDA
Tuesday, 22nd February, 2022 at 10:00 hours taking place at the Council Chamber, The
Arc, Clowne
Page
No.(s)
PART A - FORMAL
Apologies for Absence
Urgent Iltems
To note any urgent items of business which the Chairman has
consented to being considered under the provisions of Section 100(B)
4(b) of the Local Government Act 1972.
Declarations of Interest
Members should declare the existence and nature of any Disclosable
Pecuniary Interest and Non Statutory Interest as defined by the
Members’ Code of Conduct in respect of:
a) any business on the agenda
b) any urgent additional items to be considered
C) any matters arising out of those items and if appropriate, withdraw
from the meeting at the relevant time.
Minutes 5-8
To consider the minutes of the meeting on 7t December 2021.
List of Key Decisions and Items to be Considered in Private 9
(Members should contact the officer whose name appears on the List
of Key Decisions for any further information. NB: If Members wish to
discuss an exempt report under this item, the meeting will need to
move into exempt business and exclude the public in accordance with
the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 and Local
Government Act 1972, Part 1, Schedule 12a for that part of the
meeting only).
Review of Council's Policy on Fireworks (Final Report) 10 - 43
Work Programme 2021/22 44 - 50

PART B - INFORMAL

The formal meeting of the Committee ends at this point. Members wiill
meet informally as a working party to carry out their review work. This



meeting is closed to the public, so members of the public should leave
at this point.

Review Work



Agenda ltem 4
CLIMATE CHANGE AND COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Minutes of a meeting of the Climate Change and Communities Scrutiny Committee of
Bolsover District Council held at the Council Chamber, The Arc, Clowne on Tuesday
7th December 2021 at 1000 hours.

PRESENT:-

Members:-
Councillor Nick Clarke in the Chair

Councillors Anne Clarke (Vice Chair), Dexter Bullock, David Dixon, Evonne Parkin and
Janet Tait.

Officers:- Matt Finn (Environmental Health Manager — Commercial & Environment), Sara
Gordon (Human Resources and Organisational Development Manager), Joanne Wilson
(Scrutiny & Elections Officer) and Tom Scott (Governance Officer).

Also in attendance was Councillor Deborah Watson (Portfolio Holder - Environmental
Health & Licensing).

Councillor Deborah Watson and the Environmental Health Manager — Commercial &
Environment left the meeting at the end of Minute Number CLI26-21/22. The Human
Resources and Organisational Development Manager left the meeting at the end of Minute
Number CLI30-21/22.

CLI125-21/22 APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were received on behalf of Councillor David Downes and Councillor
Dan Salt.

CLI126-21/22 URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS

The Chair explained that there was one urgent item of business which he had consented

to being considered under the provisions of Section 100(B) 4(b) of the Local Government
Act 1972. This item was a report titled ‘Review of the Council’s Policy under the Gambling
Act 2005’ which had been circulated as part of the second supplementary agenda.

The Environmental Health Manager — Commercial & Environment presented the report,
and explained how the purpose of the report was for the Committee to consider renewal of
the Council’s Policy under the Gambling Act 2005 before it would be considered by
Licensing & Gambling Acts Committee on 215 December 2021.

Members had no comments on the policy and agreed to note the intention to republish the
current policy four weeks prior to its expiry date, and the revised draft Statement of
Principles.

(N.B. Councillor Deborah Watson and the Environmental Health Manager — Commercial
& Environment left the meeting at this point.)

RESOLVED that:



CLIMATE CHANGE AND COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

(i) The Committee notes the intention to republish the current policy four weeks prior to its
expiry date; and

(i) The Committee notes the revised draft Statement of Principles under the Gambling Act
2005 and the intention to carry out a public consultation on a new statement to be
published in 2022.

(Environmental Health Manager — Commercial & Environment)

CLI127-21/22 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

CLI28-21/22 MINUTES
Moved by Councillor David Dixon and seconded by Councillor Evonne Parkin.

RESOLVED that the Minutes of a Climate Change and Communities Scrutiny Committee
held on 12" October 2021 be approved as a correct record.

CLI129-21/22 LIST OF KEY DECISIONS AND ITEMS TO BE CONSIDERED IN
PRIVATE

The Scrutiny & Elections Officer presented the list of Key Decisions to Members.

RESOLVED that the list of Key Decisions be noted.

CLI130-21/22 HEALTH & WELLBEING FRAMEWORK UPDATE

The Human Resources and Organisational Development Manager presented a report to
inform and update the Scrutiny committee on progress with the Health and Wellbeing
Framework. She explained some of the initiatives that had been undertaken:

1. Access to an Employee Assistance Programme offering 24/7 telephone and on-line
support to employees covering a range of topics, including confidential telephone
counselling.

. Health Checks offered to employees

. Occupational Health, Counselling, Physiotherapy and Eye examinations

. Procurement of a new Occupational Health P

. Resilience Briefing Sessions

. Mental Health Training

. Flu vaccinations

. Covid Briefings

. Covid-19 Guidance

10. Agile Working Policy & Briefings

11. Health & Wellbeing Notice Boards at all sites

12. Promotion of Work Well initiatives and information (including H&W Bulletin)
13. Facilitating access to Council Leisure facilities

6

OCOoO~NOUIDWN



CLIMATE CHANGE AND COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

She referred to some of the sickness absence information in the report and explained how
sickness absence had been very low during the Covid pandemic because of people
working from home.

Councillor David Dixon asked how Human Resources dealt with employees during the
Covid era who had mental health issues. The Human Resources and Organisational
Development Manager explained that mental health training had been offered to all
employees, Occupational Health offered support, managers had regular 1-2-1 meetings to
check on people, and mental health ‘cards’ would be sent out to people with support
information. She added that when an employee had been on sickness absence, HR went
through a process to find out if it was due to stress, and then find out if what the trigger of it
was.

Councillor Janet Tait asked how long the period of absence had to be before an employee
was referred to Occupational Health. The Human Resources and Organisational
Development Manager explained that if HR thought it was urgent, they would refer them
immediately.

Councillor David Dixon asked what the Westfield Health scheme involved and if they
offered mental health support. The Human Resources and Organisational Development
Manager explained that it was a scheme employees could pay into, and she would
investigate whether or not Westfield Health offered mental health support.

The Chair asked if the low sickness absence statistics during the Covid pandemic was
because employees working from home were more likely to struggle through illness. The
Human Resources and Organisational Development Manager explained that the Home
Working Survey would seek to find this out.

It was moved by Councillor David Dixon and seconded by Councillor Janet Tait to note the
report.

(N.B. The Human Resources and Organisational Development Manager left the meeting at
this point.)

RESOLVED that the progress update be noted.

CLI31-21/22 WORK PROGRAMME 2021/22
The Scrutiny & Elections Officer presented the Work Programme 2021/22 to Members.

Councillor David Dixon referred to the Leisure Services update scheduled for 22"d
February 2022 and asked how the Council had funded the refurbishment of the
Leisure facilities in The Arc, and if that cost included moving existing equipment. The
Scrutiny & Elections Officer stated she would investigate this.

The Scrutiny & Elections Officer referred to the Annual Review of Community Safety
Partnership scheduled for 22" March 2022 and explained that an officer meeting on the
subject was going to happen in January 2022, so Climate Change and Communities
Scrutiny Committee would get to consider it on 22" March 2022.

v



CLIMATE CHANGE AND COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

The Chair asked if possible updates on the Woodland Project had been discussed.
The Scrutiny & Elections Officer explained she would investigate this.

The Work Programme was moved by Councillor David Dixon and seconded by
Councillor Evonne Parkin.

RESOLVED that the Committee notes the report and the Programme attached at
Appendix 1 for approval.

(Scrutiny & Elections Officer)

Meeting concluded at 1050 hours.



Agenda ltem 5

olsove

District Council

List of Key Decisions and items to be considered in private

The latest version of the Forward Plan can be found here:

https://committees.bolsover.qgov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=1147&RD=0&bcr=1

Members should contact the officer whose name appears on the List of Key
Decisions for any further information.

NB: If Members wish to discuss an exempt report under this item, the meeting
will need to move into exempt business and exclude the public in accordance
with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 and Local
Government Act 1972, Part 1, Schedule 12a for that part of the meeting only.


https://committees.bolsover.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=1147&RD=0&bcr=1
https://www.bolsover.gov.uk/

Agenda ltem 6

Bolsover District Council

Climate Change & Communities Scrutiny Committee

22 February 2022

Review of Council Policy on Fireworks

Report of the Chair of Climate Change & Communities Scrutiny Committee

Classification: This report is public
Report By: Scrutiny & Elections Officer

Contact Officer: Scrutiny & Elections Officer

PURPOSE / SUMMARY

e To presentto Scrutiny the completed report for the recent Review of Council
Policy on Fireworks.

REPORT DETAILS

1

11

1.2

1.3

2.1

Background (reasons for bringing the report)

During the 2020-21 municipal year, Members of the Healthy, Safe, Clean &
Green Communities Scrutiny Committee were made aware of a number of
resident concerns in relation to the impact of firework use, both at specified
celebrations such as Bonfire Night and New Year’'s Eve and inappropriate use
throughout the year.

Following referrals from the Customer Standards & Complaints Officer and the
Leader of the Council, Members chose to investigate further to establish what
the Council could do to mitigate the impacts at a local level.

Members looked at action taken previously following a motion to Council and
also compared the stance of Bolsover District Council (BDC) to that of North
East Derbyshire District Council (NEDDC), given that the authorities shared the
service tasked with local service delivery and enforcement. This is set out in
section 5 of the attached appendix.

Details of Proposal or Information

This review was originally agreed by the previous Healthy, Safe, Clean and
Green Communities Scrutiny Committee as part of their 2020-21 work
programme. Following the change in scrutiny structure for 2021-22, the
Members of the new Committee agreed to carry this work forward with a view

10



2.2

2.3

3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2

to clarifying the Council’s stance and addressing residents’ concerns previously
identified.

While we have taken the review forward in a slightly different manner to that
originally agreed, the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on service delivery has
instigated the need for a different approach.

Members feel the evidence considered in the subsequent pages and the
recommendations agreed by Scrutiny should bring about further improvements
at a local level, while we await further changes to national legislation as a result
of continued lobbying.

Reasons for Recommendation

The Committee have put together four recommendations which will hopefully
assist the Council in improving regulation of local firework displays and
enforcement against misuse of fireworks.

The key findings arising from the review are:

e That there is limited additional impact we can have at a local level due to
current legislation.

e To ensure service delivery remains efficient and effective across the board,
Members advise that BDC aligns its approach with North East Derbyshire
as this will allow officers to take the same approach to enforcement and
advice/guidance.

Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection

While the number of contacts over recent years has been limited, members felt
that further action could be taken to bring the approach of BDC in line with that
taken at North East Derbyshire. This should enable a more streamlined service
and create efficiencies for the team. As such a ‘do nothing’ option was
discounted.

Executive could choose not to endorse the recommendations of the review,
where they feel the course of action recommended is beyond the delivery
capacity of the Authority.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1.

That the Committee endorses the recommendations of the review outlined in
section 2 of the attached report.

That Committee submits the report to Executive for approval, in accordance
with the Scrutiny Committee Terms of Reference — Part 3.6 (3) of the
Constitution.

That following approval by Executive, monitoring of these recommendations
by Committee takes place over a twelve month period via the PERFORM

11



system with an update report to Committee at the end of the monitoring
period.

IMPLICATIONS

Finance and Risk: Yes[ No X
Details:

None from this report. Suggested action for the service can be contained within
existing budgets.

On Behalf of the Section 151 Officer

Legal (including Data Protection): Yes[ No X
Details:

In carrying out scrutiny reviews the Council is exercising its scrutiny powers as laid
out in s.21 of the Local Government Act 2000 and subsequent legislation which
added/amended these powers e.g. the Local Government and Public Involvement in
Health Act 2007.

The Council has a statutory duty under s.149 Equality Act 2010 to have due regard to
the need to advance equality of opportunity and to eliminate discrimination.

On Behalf of the Solicitor to the Council

Staffing: Yes[] No X
Details: There are no staffing implications from this report.

On behalf of the Head of Paid Service

12



DECISION INFORMATION

Decision Information

Is the decision a Key Decision? No
A Key Decision is an executive decision which has a
significant impact on two or more District wards or
which results in income or expenditure to the Council
above the following thresholds:

BDC:
Revenue - £75,000 [ Capital - £150,000
NEDDC:

Revenue - £100,000 OO0 Capital - £250,000 O
Please indicate which threshold applies

Is the decision subject to Call-In? No
(Only Key Decisions are subject to Call-In)

District Wards Significantly Affected None

Consultation: Yes

Leader / Deputy Leader [0 Cabinet / Executive [ . .
SAMT O Relevant Service Manager X Details: Relevant Service

Managers and Portfolio
Holder engaged during the
review process.

Members X Publicd Other X

Links to Council Ambition (BDC) priorities or Policy Framework including
Climate Change, Equalities, and Economics and Health implications.

DOCUMENT INFORMATION

Appendix No | Title

1 Review of the Councils Policy on Fireworks

Background Papers (These are unpublished works which have been relied on to a
material extent when preparing the report. They must be listed in the section below.
If the report is going to Cabinet (NEDDC) or Executive (BDC) you must provide
copies of the background papers)

Please contact Scrutiny & Elections Officer where further information is required.

13



Appendix 1

tion

resources

=
analysis
search

= surva statlstlcs

review III[IIIII‘VLSGIIII t|||y

strategy feenhackscr“
transformation S =2 - performance

implementation = o &

==
inspection & £ nolicy £ .= audt ‘_’“3“'““"'
£E S '
=2 = = partnerships
aa

Review of Council Policy on Fireworks

December 2020 - December 2021
CLIMATE CHANGE & COMMUNITIES
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

14



Contents

Chair's FOrEWOId .......oueiiie et e et e e 3
1. INTrOAUCHION ... et e e e e e e e e e aene 4
2. RecoOmMMENdatiONS.........oiiiiiii e 5
3. SCOPE OFf tNE MEVIEW ... e e e 8
4., Method Of REVIEW ........iiiiiii e 10
5. Analysis of evidence and Key findings ... 11

5.1 Review of previous motion adopted by Council in 2019 and the action
completed 10 date. ... 11

5.2 Assess the scale of the local environmental impact via consultation with both
residents and local agenCIeS/grOUPS .......ceevuuuuiiii et e e e e e e e eeeannns 14

5.3 Assess the scope for a local level policy and the enforcement that could take
place in addition to the potential for additional lobbying/impact at a national level....

.................................................................................................................... 14
B. CONCIUSIONS .. .ottt e e e e e e e et e e e e e b e e e e eaa s 19
Appendix 1: StaKENOIAEIS .......coooiiieee e 20
Appendix 2: Letter to Andrea Leadsom MP ... 21
Appendix 3: NEDDC Report to Cabinet (February 2020)..........cccoooveiiiiiiiiiiiiineeee. 24
Appendix 4: Firework and Bonfire Event Voluntary Registration Scheme Booklet and
APPHCAtioON FOIMM ..o e 28
Appendix 5: Bibliography..........oo oo 29



Chair’s Foreword

This review was originally agreed by the previous Healthy, Safe, Clean and Green
Communities Scrutiny Committee as part of their 2020-21 work programme.
Following the change in scrutiny structure for 2021-22, the Members of the new
Committee agreed to carry this work forward with a view to clarifying the Council’s
stance and addressing residents’ concerns previously identified.

While we have taken the review forward in a slightly different manner to that
originally agreed, the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on service delivery has
instigated the need for a different approach.

Members feel the evidence considered in the subsequent pages and the
recommendations agreed by Scrutiny should bring about further improvements at
a local level, while we await further changes to national legislation as a result of
continued lobbying.

Clir Nick Clarke
Chair of the Climate Change & Communities Scrutiny Committee

16 3



1. Introduction

During the 2020-21 municipal year, Members of the Healthy, Safe, Clean & Green
Communities Scrutiny Committee were made aware of a number of resident concerns
in relation to the impact of firework use, both at specified celebrations such as Bonfire
Night and New Year’'s Eve and inappropriate use throughout the year.

Following referrals from the Customer Standards & Complaints Officer and the Leader
of the Council, Members chose to investigate further to establish what the Council
could do to mitigate the impacts at a local level.

Members asked for a breakdown showing the number of contacts over the last three
years. In relation to the release of fireworks the Council has received a number of
requests from the public over the last few years for Members to consider, including
new requests during the 2021/22 year after the review commenced:

No. of Comments/Complaints Received
2021/22 2
2020/21 3
2019/20 8
2018/19 0
2017/18 No formal tracking

Members were mindful that while there is national legislation in relation to these
environmental issues, at a local level we would be limited in what else we can put in
place. This is likely to be limited to action on council owned land and property.

Members looked at action taken previously following a motion to Council and also
compared the stance of Bolsover District Council (BDC) to that of North East
Derbyshire District Council (NEDDC), given that the authorities shared the service
tasked with local service delivery and enforcement. This is set out below in section 5.

An information request to Derbyshire County Council during the course of the review
established that the following legislation covers the licensing, storage, and sale of
explosives/fireworks:

Health and Safety at Work etc Act 1974
Consumer Protection Act 1987

Fireworks Regulations 2004

Fireworks (Amendment) Regulations 2004
Explosives Regulations 2014

Pyrotechnic Articles (Safety) Requlations 2015



http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1974/37/contents
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1987/43/contents
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2004/1836/contents/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2004/3262/contents/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2014/1638/contents/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/1553/contents/made

8T

2. Recommendations

PERFORM | Recommendation | Desired Target Lead Officer Resources Service Response
Code Outcome Date
CCCSC20- | ThatBDC adopta | Implementation | June 2022 | Assistant Officer time Report to be submitted
2211 the same of a Director for next available
Registration Registration Environmental Approval of cabinet and
Scheme as North | Scheme with Health; Executive implemented
East Derbyshire the Bolsover thereafter. Systems
DC in order to District. Joint and process adopted
align the approach Environmental from NEDDC existing
across the shared | Alignment of Health Manager arrangements require
service. shared service (Commercial & minimal work to
across both Environment) replicate.
Councils.
CCCSC20- | That provision of Improved June 2022 | Assistant Officer time Website to be updated
221.2 advice and provision of Director in readiness for the
guidance on the information on Environmental scheme going live
BDC website is BDC website. Health;
amended to mirror
the more Alignment of Joint
accessible the approach of Environmental
approach on the service Health Manager
NEDDC website reducing (Commercial &
duplication of Environment);
workload.
Communications,
Marketing and
Design Manager
CCCSC20- | That BDC writes a | Further April 2022 | Portfolio Holder | Officer time This can be completed
221.3 follow-up letter to | lobbying for for pending approval by




6T

PERFORM | Recommendation | Desired Target Lead Officer Resources Service Response
Code Outcome Date
the Government change due to Environmental Executive. In light of
further lobbying for | in-action by Health; current staff vacancies
change to Government this may be actioned
legislation following Governance by the Scrutiny &
parliament Manager Elections Officer in
debate. conjunction with the
Portfolio Holder.
CCCSC20- | Thatthe Improved local | September | Assistant Officer time This has previously
2214 Enforcement enforcement 2022 Director Housing been explored as a
Team investigates | powers in Management & development/
the possibility of relation to Enforcement enforcement option in
enabling the CAN | firework January 2020, pre-
service to operate | misuse. covid, in conjunction

under a
Community Safety
Accreditation
Scheme in relation
to firework misuse,
enabling
enforcement
powers similar to
the Police.

with the now Director
of Resources. At the
time Derbyshire Police
agreed to consider our
request for
accreditation, however
due to the pandemic
this has not been
progressed further.
We have made contact
with the Police again
who have indicated
they will explore this
further. We will
continue to explore the
possibility of such a
scheme if the




0¢

PERFORM
Code

Recommendation

Desired
Outcome

Target
Date

Lead Officer

Resources

Service Response

Committee
recommends this,
although this is subject
to the Police granting
the Council additional
powers.




3. Scope of the review

The Healthy, Safe, Clean & Green Communities Scrutiny Committee agreed to
undertake a Review of Council Policy on Fireworks, as part of the 2020-21 Work
Programme.

The issue was initially raised via a number of comments received by the Leader and
Customer Standards & Complaints Officer in relation to Council’s Policy and the
suggestion of a Council motion in relation to the matter in line with current national
campaigns.

The review supports the Corporate Ambition of ‘Environment’ and the Priority of
‘Ensuring a high standard of environmental cleanliness, undertaking appropriate
enforcement activity where required’, but does not link directly to any Corporate
Targets.

The aim of the review was:
e To assess the local impact of Fireworks and review local Council policy.
The objectives agreed were:

e Review the previous motion adopted by Council in 2019 and the action
completed to date.

e Assess the scale of the local environmental impact via consultation with both
residents and local agencies/groups.

e Assess the scope for a local level policy and the enforcement that could take
place in addition, to the potential for additional lobbying/impact at a national
level.

The key issues identified for investigation were as follows:

e A number of complaints/comments are received per annum from residents in
relation to the use of such items and the environmental damage caused. All
communications received refer to the national campaigns. Is it possible to
establish evidence of the scale of the issue at a District level using data held by
environmental health and legal services?

e The Council has previously approved a motion submitted and completed a
range of agreed activity — what has been the effect of this?

e Further debate at a national level has not yet resulted in a change to national
policy/legislation in regards to the noise levels of fireworks sold to the public
and used at displays — this is a key element of various national campaigns by
organisations such as RSPCA. What action can be taken at a local level in
relation to licensing and sales, and encouraging use of low dB or silent
fireworks?

e |s there an impact on the Dog Warden service in October/November as a result
of lost dogs due to fireworks?

8 21



The Committee originally agreeing the review comprised the following Members:

Councillor D. Downes (Chair) Councillor A. Clarke (Vice-Chair)
Councillor J. Tait Councillor T. Munro

Councillor E. Parkin Councillor N. Hoy

Councillor D. Salt Councillor P. Roberts

Councillor D. Bullock Councillor R. Walker

Due to a change in the scrutiny structure at the AGM in May 2021, this area of delivery
moved to the remit of the Climate Change & Communities Scrutiny Committee. At
their inaugural meeting in July 2021, they agreed to continue with the review alongside
their work programme.

The new Committee comprised the following Members:

Councillor N. Clarke (Chair) Councillor A. Clarke (Vice-Chair)
Councillor J. Tait Councillor D. Salt
Councillor E. Parkin Councillor D. Bullock

Councillor D. Dixon

Support to the Committee was provided by the Scrutiny & Elections Officer.

22 9



4. Method of Review

The original Committee approving the review met on six occasions to consider the
scope of the review, key issues they wanted to discuss and to carry out interviews and
evidence gathering.

The Committee sought evidence by way of:

e Internal enquiries to establish existing policy and procedures; comparison
between delivery across the two councils in the shared service; number of
resident contacts; and specific action following a previous motion to Council;

e External enquiry to establish policy and service delivery by Derbyshire County
Council, as the upper tier authority;

e Development of a draft resident/community group survey (not subsequently
pursued following further information from Environmental Health).

A core area of discussion was around the difference in approach across the two
Councils in the shared service which was recognised as an inefficient approach to
service delivery. Members were also keen to assess action taken following the motion
and the extent to which the Covid-19 pandemic may have hindered progress.

A document review was completed of the following as part of the evidence gathering
process:

e An extract from Hansard on 2 November 2020 covering the debate on the
impact of Fireworks and relevant legislation;

e North East Derbyshire Policy, Committee reports and Firework Registration
Scheme

e BDC Compliments, Comments and Complaints data

e Council motion from 13 November 2019 and associated paperwork

Equality and Diversity

Within the process of the review, the Committee has taken into account the impact of
equalities. As part of the consideration of local consultation, Members devised a wide
list of stakeholders to ensure that all groups were targeted to encourage engagement
with the review. Had the consultation gone ahead the survey would have been
available in a variety of accessible formats and have targeted all areas of the District.
Members also considered how local policy which targeted council land and property
would disproportionately target council tenant over private owners.

10 23



5. Analysis of evidence and key findings

5.1 Review of previous motion adopted by Council in 2019 and
the action completed to date.

The full link to Council papers associated with the motion can be found within the
Bibliography of this report. The following image is an extract from the Council agenda
of 13 November 2019, where Clir Nick Clarke proposed a motion in line with a
suggested motion from the RSPCA view the motion here (PDF 170KB):

Figure 1: Extract item 7E BDC Council 13112019

e) USE OF FIREWORKS

Motion moved by Councillor Nick Clarke

| move that Bolsover District Council resolves:

To require all public firework displays within the District boundaries to be advertised
in advance of the event, allowing residents to take precautions for their animals and
vulnerable people.

To write to the Government urging them to legislate that the law be changed to only
allow the sale of fireworks to operators of licensed displays.

To actively promote a public awareness campaign about the impact of fireworks on
animal welfare and vulnerable people - including the precautions that can be taken to
mitigate risks.

To write to the UK Government urging them to introduce legislation to limit the
maximum noise level of fireworks to 90db for those sold to the public for private
displays.

To encourage local suppliers of fireworks to stock ‘quieter’ fireworks for public
display.

To tighten up the restriction of sales of fireworks in the run up to Bonfire Night to
under 18 year olds and to discourage proxy sales of fireworks for those under the
age of 18.

As noted at Appendix 4, Clirs resolved to approve all six elements of the motion:

i) all public firework displays within the District boundaries to be advertised in
advance of the event, allowing residents to take precautions for their
animals and vulnerable people.

i)  the Chief Executive Officer be requested to write to the Government urging

them to legislate that the law be changed to only allow the sale of fireworks
to operators of licensed displays.

24 11


https://aaf1a18515da0e792f78-c27fdabe952dfc357fe25ebf5c8897ee.ssl.cf5.rackcdn.com/143/522_Motion+for+councils+on+fireworks+England+290719.pdf?v=1564751853000

iii) a public awareness campaign be actively promoted about the impact of
fireworks on animal welfare and vulnerable people - including the
precautions that can be taken to mitigate risks.

iv) the Chief Executive be requested to write to the UK Government urging
them to introduce legislation to limit the maximum noise level of fireworks
to 90db for those sold to the public for private displays.

v) local suppliers of fireworks be encouraged to stock ‘quieter’ fireworks for
public display.

vi) the Authority tighten up the restriction of sales of fireworks in the run up to
Bonfire Night to under 18 year olds and to discourage proxy sales of
fireworks for those under the age of 18.

Points (i), (iii), (iv) and (v) appear in the suggested motion by RSPCA which a
number of residents have urged Council to consider (see section 1 outlining
background information and contacts from residents).

Clir Clarke’s motion and the subsequent resolution went beyond this and had
two additional elements to those stated above.

Action to date

The following table summarises activity to date:

12

Action

Activity completed

(i)

No specific activity has been taken forward in this area to date.
Evidence gathered in September 2021 shows how this has been
addressed at North East Derbyshire via a Registration Scheme.
Members acknowledge the benefits of such an approach and
believe it would lead to more efficient service delivery if the same
approach was taken within the Bolsover District. This would also
require minimal additional input from staff as the documentation
already exists and can be easily adapted.

(ii)

Following agreement of the resolution by Council on 13 November
2019, a letter was sent to Rt Hon Andrea Leadsom MP from the
Council (See Appendix 2). The Council urged the Government to
consider:
a) ...that the law be changed to only allow the sale of fireworks
to operators of licensed displays....

(iil)

Following agreement of the resolution by Council on 13 November
2019, a letter was sent to Rt Hon Andrea Leadsom MP from the
Council (See Appendix 2). The Council urged the Government to
consider:

b) a public awareness campaign be actively promoted about
the impact of fireworks on animal welfare and vulnerable

25




Action

Activity completed

people — including the precautions that can be taken to
mitigate risks.

In terms of any local activity, this area of work has not moved
forward at Bolsover due to capacity of the service and agreed
priorities as a result of the pandemic. However, following a briefing
from Environmental Health in September 2021, Members are aware
of progress that North East Derbyshire have made in this area and
believe it would be beneficial for service delivery to be consistent
across the shared service. Section 5.3 below and Appendix 4 of
this report shows what could be replicated at BDC.

(iv)

Following agreement of the resolution by Council on 13 November
2019, a letter was sent to Rt Hon Andrea Leadsom MP from the
Council (See Appendix 2). The Council urged the Government to
consider:

c) theintroduction of legislation to limit the maximum noise level
of fireworks to 90db for those sold to the public for private
displays.

Responsibility for compliance with legislation supporting the control
of sales sits with Derbyshire County Council. It is not within the
Council’s remit to further restrict sales. As such this element of the
motion is beyond the powers of the Council to address. See Section
5.3 for more detail.

(vi)

Responsibility for compliance with legislation supporting the control
of sales sits with Derbyshire County Council. It is not within the
Council’s remit to further restrict sales. As such this element of the
motion is beyond the powers of the Council to address. See Section
5.3 for more detail.

As part of the review, Members of Healthy, Safe, Clean & Green Scrutiny
Committee reviewed the debate in parliament on existing legislation. This was
re-circulated following Committee changes. A link to the Hansard extract can

be found within the Bibliography.

No further action was taken by the

Government at the time to propose changes to the existing legislation in the
Fireworks Act 2003.

Recommendation:
That BDC adopt a the same Registration Scheme as North East Derbyshire DC
in order to align the approach across the shared service.

That BDC writes a follow-up letter to the Government further lobbying for
change to legislation.

That provision of advice and guidance on the BDC website is amended to mirror
the more accessible approach on NEDDC website.

26 13




5.2 Assess the scale of the local environmental impact via
consultation with both residents and local agencies/groups

As part of the original scope, Healthy, Safe, Clean & Green Communities Scrutiny
Committee developed a brief questionnaire that could be used to consult with both
residents and local community groups. Due to the timing of this coinciding with
municipal year end and a scheduled Citizen Panel Survey, hard copy questionnaires
were not an option. Members had agreed to look at a web-based approach but agreed
that they would re-assess how the consultation could be completed following the
election period and Council AGM.

Due to changes in the scrutiny structure at AGM, the review was presented to Climate
Change & Communities Scrutiny to assess whether the review was still relevant and
if members wanted to continue the piece of work. The new Committee agreed to
continue with the review but chose to hold off carrying out consultation in favour of
speaking to officers in more detail.

At one of the evidence sessions in September 2021, it became apparent that
Environmental Health officers received little complaint from residents in relation to
fireworks and there was also no demand on the Dog Warden during this period due to
lost dogs as a result of firework incidents. As such, Members felt there was not
sufficient evidence to suggest wider consultation was not required, due to the limited
volume of contacts to both Environmental Health and the Complaints & Customer
Standards Officer.

5.3 Assess the scope for a local level policy and the enforcement
that could take place in addition to the potential for additional
lobbying/impact at a national level.

District-level Policy

Following agreement by the new Climate Change & Communities Scrutiny Committee
to take on the review, an information request was put to officers in Legal and
Environmental Health Services.

Members requested the following details:

e What actions are the Council completing in the run up to November 2021,
particularly any partnership approaches with Parishes/Community groups?

e Members would also like to understand what legislation is place to support the
licensing of Low dB Fireworks and whether we can stipulate that this is all
that’s used/sold locally?

Officer responses were as follows:

By way of background information:
e Sale of fireworks is licensed by the County Council, not District;
e Conditions cannot be imposed locally;

14 27



e Conditions/prohibitions to be attached to a licence can only be
set by the Secretary of State in regulations.

The District Council has no powers to restrict or place conditions on the
sale of fireworks in the area. Nor do we have any powers to control
what people do on private property in respect of the use of fireworks.

In addition to the policy in respect of BDC-owned land the only other
possibility would be to look at restrictions on use of them in other
publicly-accessible open spaces but that would be of limited scope and
would probably not be helpful in the context of noise/volume.

Officers also attended Committee in September 2021 to brief Members on the
approach taken at North East Derbyshire DC (NEDDC) ‘Bonfire and Firework Display
Registration Scheme’ which could easily be replicated at Bolsover. A number of
neighbouring authorities have adopted similar schemes to the Registration Scheme.
The scheme would raise awareness of safety concerns, promote the RSPCA noise
campaign, and introduce a voluntary registration system (with code of conduct) for
public displays. While this had not been implemented as planned in 2021 due to the
pandemic, it was expected to be fully operational for 2022. The Council website at
NEDDC is the primary resource for raising awareness of safety and the approach
taken by the Council.

It was also noted that Derbyshire Fire & Rescue Service are considering whether they
could actually start to run these, and are currently looking at taking over the Derbyshire
Dales DC one, as it fits more with their role. There may be that opportunity for NEDDC
too, so any BDC scheme needs to be mindful of countywide fire and rescue services
looking to take on and run them, which can only be an improvement in the long-term.

The Environmental Health Manager — Commercial & Environment responded to some
of the specific points raised by Committee on 3 August 2021 as below:

1) Derbyshire County Council licence all storage of the fireworks people buy in the
area (see further detail in County section below).

2) The Government has researched the impact of firework noises on people and
concluded that the volume is the same as a ringing telephone. However,
distance can change this.

3) Having different types of firework shows such as light shows would depend on
the Government legislating for it.

4) The Environmental Health Service did not receive complaints/requests for the
Dog Warden Service as a result of dogs being scared by fireworks.

The Environmental Health Manager — Commercial & Environment explained that many
of the issues mentioned were Police matters. The concept of a Community Safety
Accreditation Scheme (CSAS) was discussed and the Environmental Health Manager
— Commercial & Environment noted awareness of such an approach used by
neighbouring authority areas and was aware that this was something that could
happen across the County in the future. On a CSAS scheme, they are usually agreed
individually with local authorities (LA) based on what issues each LA wants to tackle,
and which fit with local police priorities and Community Safety Partnership priorities.

28 15



If BDC or another District or the county wanted to do something similar then it would
need a separate legal agreement with the Police. However the issues and
expectations on those authorised Council staff may be different.

Most commonly, CSAS schemes enable staff from Councils and private companies
(usually large shopping centres such as Meadownhall) to deal with very low level ASB
by way of on the spot fines or confiscating alcohol. They vary depending on the
issues. However, it was noted further information was needed on how the
Derbyshire Police CSAS schemes work and whether they may have different powers
they usually allow others to discharge for them.

Members agreed that they would like to see an approach to enforcement and firework
misuse that would see Enforcement officers join a Community Safety Accreditation
Scheme (CSAS), which would allow them to carry out Police work. The Assistant
Director Leader’s Executive, Partnerships and Communications agreed they could
investigate the possibility of such an approach via their links with the Community
Safety Partnership, in conjunction with Assistant Director Housing Management &
Enforcement. Any CSAS developed could run alongside replication of the NEDDC
Registration scheme in Bolsover.

County-level Policy

A further request was submitted to Derbyshire County Council Trading Standards
team confirming that Members were exploring what avenues were open in terms of
setting local policy and seeking clarity on DCC’s perspective and to clarify local
activity:

e What actions the Council is completing in the run up to November
2021, particularly any partnership approaches with
Parishes/Community groups?

e Members would also like to understand what legislation is place to
support the licensing of Low dB Fireworks and whether we can
stipulate that this is all that’s used/sold locally?

Their response was as follows:

“As you are aware; at Derbyshire Trading Standards we licence the
storage of explosives (fireworks) within the County. On the basis of
any applications we receive, previous history, storage conditions
(including separation distances), hazard type, and complaints, we
then plan our inspections as a targeted approach to ensure that the
businesses concerned only store safely the fireworks they are
licensed to possess. We also respond to any complaints regarding
unlicensed storage and the retailing of fireworks to persons under
the stipulated age.

Fireworks are listed as the following categories:

16 29



e Category F1 fireworks present a very low hazard and
negligible noise level and are intended for use in confined
areas, including fireworks that are intended for use inside
domestic buildings.

e Category F2 fireworks present a low hazard and low noise
level and are intended for outdoor use in confined areas.

e Category F3 fireworks present a medium hazard, are
intended for outdoor use in large open areas and have a
noise level that is not harmful to human health.

e Category F4 fireworks present a high hazard, are intended
for use only by persons with specialist knowledge and have a
noise level that is not harmful to human health.

Only categories F1, F2 and F3 can be supplied to the public.
Category F4 can only be supplied to persons with specialist
fireworks knowledge. There are also four hazard types (HT1 -
HT4), which are used for storage licensing purposes.

The Pyrotechnic Articles (Safety) Regulations 2015 prohibit the
supply of category F4 fireworks to the general public. The
Regulations prohibit the supply of category F2 (outdoor use -
confined areas) and category F3 (outdoor use - large open areas)
fireworks to any person under 18. The Regulations prohibit the
supply of category F1 (indoor use low-hazard low-noise - party
poppers etc.) fireworks to any person under 16. An exception is
made for Christmas crackers, which must not be supplied to any
person under 12. Caps for toy guns are exempt from fireworks
legislation. Any firework that exceeds 120 decibels must not be
supplied to consumers.

As stated earlier, this authority intends to targeted inspections at
premises licenced to store explosives and respond to any
complaints in regard to storage/retail sale. Regarding partnership
approaches; at the present time we have no-intention of taking part
in any such activity, but would be willing to do so if there was a
perceived benefit and resources allowed. We have undertaken joint
inspection work in the past with the Fire Service.

The second part of your question regarding the licensing of Low dB
Fireworks and whether we can stipulate that this is all that’s
used/sold locally is a little more complex. The category of firework
is stipulated within the legislation and such fireworks must meet the
noise level requirements of that category. When we licence a
premises for storage we licence to store for hazard types (HT1 —
HT4) - HT1 being the most dangerous. HT1 and HT2 are not
suitable for retail storage. Most fireworks that can be supplied to
consumers contain HT4 explosives but some are designated as
HT3 because they are more dangerous.

30

17



The supply of fireworks is governed by different legislation, which
uses a different numbering system that is covered above (F1 - F4).
HT4 fireworks are suitable for retail supply and are categorised for
supply using a system that is explained above. HT3 fireworks are
normally only available from specialist fireworks suppliers with
premises that only supply fireworks. For the vast majority of
retailers we licence to store HT4 which would include categories
F1- F3.

As you can see from the above it would be difficult for us to try and
stipulate the supply of a certain F1 — F3 category as we only licence
the hazard type. Even if we could there would be nothing stopping
a consumer travelling to another district, or across the border into
Nottinghamshire, to purchase the fireworks there. From an
enforcement point of view it would be virtually impossible to
stipulate that only low decibel fireworks are sold and used in a
certain district/area; especially when you take into account the fact
of people buying and selling via Facebook and other such sites. In
Trading Standards we only licence legitimate businesses, although
as detailed above, we will act when we receive information about
any unlicensed storage.

Members were satisfied that the detail received confirmed the difference between
District and County roles and that there was limited powers available to District
Councils.

Recommendation:

That the Enforcement Team investigates the possibility of enabling the CAN
service to operate under a Community Safety Accreditation Scheme in relation
to firework misuse, enabling enforcement powers similar to the Police.

18 31



6. Conclusions

The Committee have put together four recommendations which will hopefully assist
the Council in improving regulation of local firework displays and enforcement against
misuse of fireworks.

The key findings arising from the review are:

e Thatthere is limited additional impact we can have at a local level due to current
legislation.

e To ensure service delivery remains efficient and effective across the board,
Members advise that BDC aligns its approach with North East Derbyshire as
this will allow officers to take the same approach to enforcement and
advice/guidance.

32 19



Appendix 1: Stakeholders

Stakeholders engaged during the Review:

Portfolio Holder — CllIr Watson (Environmental Health)

Leader of Bolsover District Council

Customer Standards and Complaints Officer

Assistant Director of Environmental Health

Joint Environmental Health Managers

Legal Team Leader (Contentious)

Derbyshire County Council Trading Standards

Assistant Director Leader’s Executive, Partnerships & Communications

Stakeholders impacted by the Review:

Bolsover residents

Bolsover DC tenants

Portfolio Holder — CllIr Watson (Environmental Health)

Assistant Director Environmental Health and Joint Environmental Health

team

20

Communications team

Governance team

Assistant Director Leader’s Executive, Partnerships & Communications
Partnerships Team

CAN Service

33



Appendix 2: Letter to Andrea Leadsom MP

Bolsover

.l'l'

Our-Ref:-Motion-0411{e)---20192020 b=
Please-Ask-For:-Micola-Caherd] The-Arc!
Direct-Line:-01248-217753 High-Strest!
Email:-nicols.cabvenmne-derbyshire. gov ukd] Clowne!
Date:--15"-January-20209] 5434
1‘| L]

1 1
RFt-Hom-Andres-Leadsom-MP=- o
Secretary-of State-for-Business, -Energy-and-Industrial- Strategy ]
House-of CommaonsT]

Lomdon]

SV A-DAAY

1

Dear-Secretary-of - State-for- Business, -Enengy-and- Industrial-Sirategy]]

1
At-its-meeting-on-13"-Movember- 2019, -Bolsover-District-Council-agreed-a-motion-to]

1
apewrite-to-the-Government-urging that-the-law-be-changed-fo-only-allow the-sale-
of-fireworks-to-operators-of-licensed-displays. 1|
b a-public-swarensss-campaign-be-actively promoted-about-the-impact-of-
fireworks-on-animal-walfare-and-vuinerable-people —including the-precautions-
that-can-be taken-to-mitigate-risks. 4]
1
cl-write-to-the- UK Gowernment- urging-the- introduction- of- legislation- to- limit- the-
migzimum-noisedevel -of fireworks to-80db-for-those-sold to-the-public-for-private-
displays. -]
1
lt-was-resolved- that the Council-writes-tothe-Govemmeni-to-request that these-issues-
be-addressed |
1
Please-find-enclosed-a-copy-of-the - resclutionfor your-information ]
I'l
fours-simcershd]
'i. -".. .|_ e B
m
Micola-Caheer]
Govermnance-Manager]
1

34



BOLSOVER-DISTRICT-COUNCILY
T

Council-—13® -November- 2019
Minute-0411-{e)

1

e} The-folkowing -motion-was-submitted -for-considerstion-by-Councillor-MNick-Clarks: 1]
1

i-move-thal Bolsover-Disfich Council resaivesz |

I'l

Torequire il public-freworcdizplsys within the Dizfnct boundares fo-be-adverizad-in
advance- of the-event, - allowing- reaidents- fo- take - precautions for- their- animals- snd-
vuinersble-people. 1]

I'|

Tao-wrife-fo-the Govermmeant-unging-them -fo-legizfate-that-the-law-be -changed-fo-anly-
altow-the-zale-of fireworks-lo-operaforsof-icenzed dizplaps. 1]

I'|

To-acfively-promofe-5-public- awareness-campaign-aboul- the-impact-of freworks-on-
animal-weilfsre and-vulnersble people - -incfuding-fhe-precautions thal -can-be faken-to-
mitigsfe-rizks. |

I'l

Ta- wiife- fo- fhe- LK Gowvemmant- usging- them- fo- infroduce- lagislation- fio- limit- the-
maximum- naize- leved- of freworks- fo- 30db- for those- 2oid- to- the- public- for- private:
ﬁfmaﬁ 1

Toancowrage ‘ocal-zupplers of fireworks to-sfock - guieter -ireworfee for public-dizplay )
I'l

To-hightan-up-the-resiniclion of salez of fireworks-1n the wn-up-fo-Bonfire-Mightto-under

1 8-yearolds-andfo-discourage prox)-satez of-freworks for-those under the ageof 187
1

Councillor- Tom-Firkham-duly-seconded-the-motion-and -resered-his-right-to-spesk. |

1

AMEMNDMEMT]

1

Councillor- Andrew- Joesbury- proposed- an- amendmeni-to-the- motion- to- add- 8- new-
paragraph-to-the-end. -reading: - "To-write-to-the-Government-for-a-blanket- ban-on-all-
firework-sales-fo-private-individusls. ™

1

Councillor- Andrew- Joesbury- spoke- on- his- amendment, - belisving- that- there- were-
miultiple- fire- incidents- all- cwer- the- country- on- every- Bonfire- Might, - and- ha- felt- the-
Govermnment-had-done-itfle-{o-addrass ity

1

Counciller-Dan-Salt-duly-seconded the-amendment )

1

Councillor-&nne-Clarke-believed t-wasimportant to-considerthe-effect fireworks-cowld-
hawe- on-weterans - who-might- have- Post- Traumatic- Stress- Disorder. - She-added-that-
fireworks-can-slso-have-a-significant-impact-onpets v

1

Councillor- Duncan- MoGregor advised- that- the- second- resolution-within- the- originsal-
rriction- " To-write-tothe-Govermmeni-urging them-to-legislate-that-the-lew-be-changed-
to-only-zsllow-the-sale-of fireworks-to-operators-of-licensed-displays™)-alresdy -coversd-
Councillor- Andrew- Jossbury's- amendment. - Councillor- Andrew- Joesbury, - with- the-
agreement-of the-seconder-Cowncillor- Dan-Salt-agreed to-withdrew-the-amendment ]

22

35




BOLSOVER-DISTRICT-COUMNCILY
1

ORIGIMAL-MMOTIOMY

1
Onb=ing -put-to-the-vote, the-criginal - motion-was-camed g

1
RESOLVED-that-]

i)-— zllpublic-firework -displays-within-the-District-boundaries-fo-be-advertiz=d-in-
gdvance- of the- event, - allowing- residents- to- take- precautions- for- their-
animals-and-vulnerable-people 1|

1

ij— the-Chief-Execufive-Ufficar-be-requested towrite tothe-Govemment-wurging-
them-to-legislate-that-the taw-be-changed-fo-only-allow the -sale-of-fireworks-
fo-operators-of censed-displays. 1]

1

ili}— = public- awareness- campaign- be- actively- prometed- about-the: impact- of-
fireworks- on- animal- welfare- and- vulmerable- people: — including- the-
precautions-that-can-be-taken-to-mitigate risks.

1

i)-—the- Chief- Executive- be- reguested- fo- write- to- the- UK Government- urging-
them-to-introduce-legislation-to-limit-the meaximuem- noise-level-of fireworks-
fo-B0db-for-those-sold to-the-public-for-private-displays.-

1

v} —e local- suppliers- of-fireworks- be-encouraged- to- stock- 'guister’- fireworks- for-
public-display 1]

1
wi)-—the-Authority-tighten-up-the-restricion-of sales-of-fireworks-in-the-run-up-to-
Eonfire- Might- to- under- 12- year- olds- and- to- discourage- proxy- sales- of-
fireworks-for-those-under-the-age-of 12.9]
(Chief-Executive-Officer]

36

23




Appendix 3: NEDDC Report to Cabinet (February 2020)

Agenda ltem No *

North East Derbyshire District Council

Cabinet

13" February 2020

Bonfire and Firework Display Safety Campaign 2020

Report of the Portfolio Holder for the Environment

This report is public

Purpose of the Report

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

24

To present to Cabinet initial plans for a Bonfire and Firework Display Campaign
for 2020.

To make Cabinet aware of a national campaign by the RSPCA calling for
additional controls and measures including reducing noise levels, licensing
displays and raising awareness of the impact of fireworks on animal welfare
and vulnerable people.

Report Details

Background and Current Requlatory Framework

It has been widely reported in the press that thousands of people are injured
each year in firework related accidents in the home. The RSPCA has launched
a campaign called #BangOutOfOrder to raise awareness and lobby for greater
controls on firework volumes and sales and greater awareness of the impact on
pets, horses, farm animals and wildlife.

The Fireworks Regulations 2004 updated the previous legislation regarding the
sale and use of fireworks. They prohibit the possession and use of excessively
loud category 3 fireworks (above 120dB(A)) and restrict sales of Category 4
fireworks to professional display companies who can demonstrate they have
full insurance, proper licenced storage and competence.

It is illegal to set off fireworks between 11pm and 7am, except for on Bonfire
Night, when the cut off is midnight and on New Year’s Eve, Diwali and Chinese
New Year, when the cut off is 1am. It is also illegal to sell fireworks to people
under the age of 18. ltis illegal under the Town Police Clauses Act 1847, to

37



1.5

1.6

1.7

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.1

3.2

set off or throw fireworks (including sparklers) in the street or other public
places.

Buying fireworks for private use from Derbyshire County Council registered
sellers is also restricted to between the 15" October and 10" November, 26"
and 315t December and 3 days before Diwali and Chinese New Year. Outside
of these times people can only buy fireworks from one of five Derbyshire
premises which hold a year round licence premises.

The laws on possession and use of fireworks are enforced by the Police, and
the licensing of sellers and under age sales offences are the responsibility of
Derbyshire County Council’s Trading Standards.

Although North East Derbyshire District Council has no powers to deal with the
sales and use of fireworks, it does enforce health and safety legislation in shops
and at some outdoor events. Although the topic is not on the Health and Safety
Executive’s priorities for local enforcing authorities in 2020/21, the Joint
Environmental Health Service recognises that there is concern about the impact
fireworks can have at public displays and in domestic settings.

Conclusions and Reasons for Recommendation

The Joint Environmental Health Service has begun planning a Bonfire and
Firework Display Registration Scheme due to be launched in September 2020,
and through the run up to the Bonfire Night period.

The scheme will aim to raise awareness of the principle safety concerns and
risks associated with fireworks, bonfires and uncontrolled displays. It will also
promote the RSPCA campaign to raise awareness of the impact on pets and
other animals to enable people to make informed decisions about their use of
fireworks and to be aware of events taking place in their community.

The scheme will introduce a voluntary registration system and a code of
conduct for public display, addressing safety and noise concerns, which
registered events will be requested to agree to. Registered events will be
publicised on the Council’s website, helping to raise awareness of events within
communities as requested by the RSPCA.

Consultation and Equality Impact

In developing the registration scheme further consultation will be held with the
Police, Trading Standards and the RSPCA.

There are no impacts on equality arising from this report, although it is noted

that fireworks can have a disproportionate impact on vulnerable people in
society.

38 25



41

4.2

5.1

51.1

5.2
5.2.1

5.2.2

5.3

5.3.1

6.1

6.2

26

Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection

The Service has considered other options such as attempting to draw up Public
Space Protection Orders and use of Community Protection Notices. However,
there have not been any events which have been reported to the service over
the previous Bonfire Night period which would lead to the need for additional
local regulation. In addition, the existing primary legislation contains robust
controls for dealing with anti-social behaviour related to fireworks and the
general use and sale of fireworks to authorised persons.

Further restrictions on sales and categorisation of fireworks would require
primary legislation to further restrict the manufacture and sale of fireworks. The

RSPCA'’s national campaign calling for additional restrictions and measures is
summarised in a draft motion for Councils attached at appendix 1 to this report.

Implications

Finance and Risk Implications

The safety campaign and promotion has no financial risk associated with it.
There are a number of registration schemes operating nationally through other
local authorities which the Council can use as a template. Online marketing of
the scheme as well as press releases and social media messages will enable
promotion of the registration scheme.

Legal Implications including Data Protection

There are no legal implications of these proposals.
Businesses who sign up to the registration scheme will consent to

organisation details being published and prior to the electronic form being
made live these matters will be checked with the Data Protection Officer.

Human Resources Implications

There are no human resource implications for these recommendations as the
work will be completed and administered through existing resources.

Recommendations

That Cabinet notes and supports the introduction of a Firework and Bonfire
Registration Scheme and Code of Conduct.

That Cabinet agrees that officers arrange to meet with the RSPCA to consider
their call for additional controls and measures including reducing the maximum
noise level of fireworks sold to the public, ensuring they are labelled accurately
and licensing all public firework displays.

39



7

Decision Information

Is the decision a Key Decision? No
A Key Decision is an executive decision
which has a significant impact on two or
more District wards or which results in
income or expenditure to the Council
above the following thresholds:
BDC: Revenue - £75,000 0O

Capital - £150,000 0O
NEDDC: Revenue - £100,000 O

Capital - £250,000 0O
M Please indicate which threshold applies
Is the decision subject to Call-In? No
(Only Key Decisions are subject to Call-In)
Has the relevant Portfolio Holder been | Yes
informed
District Wards Affected All

Links to Corporate Plan priorities or
Policy Framework

NEDDC Council Plan 1.4, 3.1,
3.2,41,4.3
BDC — To be confirmed

Document Information

Appendix No | Title

1 RSPCA Draft motion for councils on fireworks

Background Papers (These are unpublished works which have been relied
on to a material extent when preparing the report. They must be listed in
the section below. If the report is going to Cabinet (NEDDC) or Executive
(BDC) you must provide copies of the background papers)

1. The Fireworks Requlations 2004

2. National Local Authority Enforcement Code, Health and Safety

Executive

Report Author

Contact Number

Matt Finn, Environmental Health Manager

01246 217848

Report Reference —

40

27


http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2004/1836/contents/made
http://www.hse.gov.uk/lau/national-la-code.pdf
http://www.hse.gov.uk/lau/national-la-code.pdf

Appendix 4: Firework and Bonfire Event Voluntary
Registration Scheme Booklet and Application Form

Specific advice and links to additional guidance including the Voluntary Registration
Scheme can be found on the NEDDC website:

https://www.ne-derbyshire.gov.uk/environmental-health/waste-damage-and-
disturbance/fireworks

28 41


https://www.ne-derbyshire.gov.uk/environmental-health/waste-damage-and-disturbance/fireworks
https://www.ne-derbyshire.gov.uk/environmental-health/waste-damage-and-disturbance/fireworks

Appendix 5: Bibliography

Bolsover District Council, (13 November 2019), Minutes of Council, Minute number
411(e), pp9-10.
https://bmoderngov.bolsover.gov.uk/documents/g2200/Printed%20minutes %201
3th-Nov-2019%2010.00%20Council.pdf?T=1

Hansard, 2 November 2020, Volume 683: Fireworks,
https://hansard.parliament.uk/commons/2020-11-02/debates/F982D230-02C0-4A8B-
8A60-DOC51F952944/Fireworks

North East Derbyshire District Council, (February 2021), Item 5(a) Bonfire and
Firework Display Safety Campaign 2020, pp47-52.

https://democracy.ne-
derbyshire.gov.uk/documents/g1283/Public%20reports%20pack%2013th-Feb-
2020%2016.30%20Cabinet.pdf?T=10

42 29


https://bmoderngov.bolsover.gov.uk/documents/g2200/Printed%20minutes%2013th-Nov-2019%2010.00%20Council.pdf?T=1
https://bmoderngov.bolsover.gov.uk/documents/g2200/Printed%20minutes%2013th-Nov-2019%2010.00%20Council.pdf?T=1
https://hansard.parliament.uk/commons/2020-11-02/debates/F982D230-02C0-4A8B-8A60-D0C51F952944/Fireworks
https://hansard.parliament.uk/commons/2020-11-02/debates/F982D230-02C0-4A8B-8A60-D0C51F952944/Fireworks
https://democracy.ne-derbyshire.gov.uk/documents/g1283/Public%20reports%20pack%2013th-Feb-2020%2016.30%20Cabinet.pdf?T=10
https://democracy.ne-derbyshire.gov.uk/documents/g1283/Public%20reports%20pack%2013th-Feb-2020%2016.30%20Cabinet.pdf?T=10
https://democracy.ne-derbyshire.gov.uk/documents/g1283/Public%20reports%20pack%2013th-Feb-2020%2016.30%20Cabinet.pdf?T=10

olsover

We speak
your language

Polish

Moéwimy Twoim

Jjezykiem
Slovak
Rozpravame

VaSim jazykom

Chinese

FNIRIRENES

[f you require
this publication in

large print

or another format
please call us on

01246 242424

43




Agenda ltem 7

Bolsover District Council

Climate Change & Communities Scrutiny Committee

22 February 2022

Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2021/22

Report of the Scrutiny & Elections Officer

Classification: This report is public.
Report By: Scrutiny & Elections Officer

Contact Officer: Joanne Wilson, joanne.wilson@bolsover.qov.uk

PURPOSE / SUMMARY

To provide members of the Scrutiny Committee with an overview of the meeting
programme of the Committee for 2021/22.

REPORT DETAILS

1

11

1.2

1.3

1.4

15

Background (reasons for bringing the report)

The main purpose of the report is to inform members of the meeting programme
for the year 2021/22 and planned agenda items (Appendix 1).

This programme may be subject to change should additional
reports/presentations be required, or if items need to be re-arranged for
alternative dates.

Review Scopes submitted will be agreed within Informal Session in advance
of the designated meeting for Member approval to ensure that there is
sufficient time to gather the information required by Members and to enable
forward planning of questions.

Members may raise queries about the programme at the meeting or at any
time with the Scrutiny & Elections Officer should they have any queries
regarding future meetings.

All Scrutiny Committees are committed to equality and diversity in undertaking
their statutory responsibilities and ensure equalities are considered as part of
all Reviews. The selection criteria when submitting a topic, specifically asks
members to identify where the topic suggested affects particular population
groups or geographies.

44


mailto:joanne.wilson@bolsover.gov.uk

1.6

1.7

2.1

3.1

3.2

3.3

4.1

The Council has a statutory duty under s.149 Equality Act 2010 to have due
regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity and to eliminate
discrimination.

As part of the scoping of Reviews, consideration is given to any consultation
that could support the evidence gathering process.

Details of Proposal or Information

Attached at Appendix 1 is the meeting schedule for 2021/22 and the proposed
agenda items for approval/amendment.

Reasons for Recommendation

This report sets the formal Committee Work Programme for 2021/22 and the
issues identified for review.

The Scrutiny Programme enables challenge to service delivery both internally
and externally across all the Council Ambitions.

The Scrutiny functions outlined in Part 3.6(1) of the Council’'s Constitution
requires each Scrutiny Committee to set an annual work plan.

Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection

There is no option to reject the report as the Scrutiny functions outlined in Part
3.6(1) of the Council’'s Constitution requires each Scrutiny Committee to set an
annual work plan.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1. That Members review this report and the Programme attached at
Appendix 1 for approval and amendment as required. All Members are
advised to contact the Scrutiny & Elections Officer should they have any
gueries regarding future meetings.

IMPLICATIONS
Finance and Risk: Yes[] No X
Details:

None from this report.

On Behalf of the Section 151 Officer

45



Legal (including Data Protection): YesX No [
Details:

In carrying out scrutiny reviews the Council is exercising its scrutiny powers as laid
out in s.21 of the Local Government Act 2000 and subsequent legislation which
added to/amended these powers e.g. the Local Government and Public Involvement
in Health Act 2007.

On Behalf of the Solicitor to the Council

Staffing: Yes[ No X
Details:

None from this report.

On behalf of the Head of Paid Service

DECISION INFORMATION

Decision Information

Is the decision a Key Decision? No
A Key Decision is an executive decision which has a
significant impact on two or more District wards or
which results in income or expenditure to the Council
above the following thresholds:

BDC:
Revenue - £75,000 [ Capital - £150,000
NEDDC:

Revenue - £100,000 O Capital - £250,000 O
X Please indicate which threshold applies

Is the decision subject to Call-In? No
(Only Key Decisions are subject to Call-In)

District Wards Significantly Affected N/A
Consultation: Yes
Leader / Deputy Leader [0 Cabinet / Executive [ _
SAMTO Relevant Service Manager O Details:

Members O Publicd Other O Committee Members

46



Links to Council Ambition (BDC)/Council Plan (NED) priorities or Policy
Framework including Climate Change, Equalities, and Economics and Health
implications.

All

DOCUMENT INFORMATION

Appendix No | Title

1. CCCSC Work Programme 2021/22

Background Papers (These are unpublished works which have been relied on to a
material extent when preparing the report. They must be listed in the section below.
If the report is going to Cabinet (NEDDC) or Executive (BDC) you must provide
copies of the background papers)

Previous versions of the Committee Work Programme.

47



Climate Change and Communities Scrutiny Committee

Work Programme 2021/22

Performance Review

Policy Development Policy/Strategy Review Work Call-In/Review of
Programme Monitoring Executive Decisions

Petition

Date of Items for Agenda Lead Officer
Meeting
3 August Part A — e Agreement of Work Programme 2021/22 (to include briefing on suggested Scrutiny & Elections
2021 Formal review topic) Officer;
H Partnership team
o Part B — e Review Work Scrutiny & Elections
Informal Officer
7 September | Part A - e Review of Council’s Policy on Fireworks Environmental Health
2021 Formal Service Manager
(Commercial &
Environment)
e Sustainable Community Strategy 2020-23 and current Partnership delivery — Partnership Team
Monitoring Update
e Work Programme 2021/22 Scrutiny & Elections
Officer
Part B — e Review work Scrutiny & Elections
Informal Officer
12 October Part A - e Mandatory CCTV in Taxi's Environmental Health
2021 Formal Service Manager

(Commercial &
Environment)

e Taxi and Private Hire Policy Review

Environmental Health
Service Manager
(Commercial &
Environment)

T Xipuaddy




Date of

Items for Agenda

Lead Officer

Meeting
Work Programme 2021/22 — Agreement of Review Scope Scrutiny & Elections
Officer
Part B — Review work Scrutiny & Elections
Informal Officer
7 December Part A — Health and Wellbeing Strategy — Monitoring Update HR & OD Manager
2021 Formal
Work Programme 2021/22 Scrutiny & Elections
Officer
Part B — Review work Partnerships team/
Informal Scrutiny & Elections
Officer
% Review work: Review of Council’s Policy on Fireworks (Draft report) Scrutiny & Elections
Officer
22 February Part A — Delivery of Leisure Services post Covid-19 — Impact on provision, budgets and Leisure Operations
2022 Formal sustainability of service Manager
Review of Council’s Policy on Fireworks (Final report) Scrutiny & Elections
Officer
Work Programme 2021/22 Scrutiny & Elections
Officer
Part B — Preparation for Annual Review of the Community Safety Partnership Scrutiny & Elections
Informal Officer
Review work Partnerships team/
Scrutiny & Elections
Officer
22 March Part A — Annual Review of Community Safety Partnership Strategic Director/ Head
2022 Formal of Housing Management

and Enforcement/
Housing Enforcement
Manager/ Community
Safety Officer

Work Programme 2021/22

Scrutiny & Elections
Officer




Date of Items for Agenda Lead Officer
Meeting
Part B — Review Work Scrutiny & Elections
Informal Officer
24 May 2022 Part A — TBC
Formal
Work Programme 2021/22 Scrutiny & Elections
Officer
Part B — Review work Scrutiny & Elections
Informal Officer

0S




	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	5 List of Key Decisions and Items to be Considered in Private
	6 Review of Council's Policy on Fireworks (Final Report)
	Appendix 1 - Firework Review Report

	7 Work Programme 2021/22
	Appendix 1 - Work Programme 2021-22


